
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECI'ION AGENCY 
Region6 

1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200 
Dallas, Texas 75202- 2733 

NOV 2 0 2012 

Certified Mail- Return Receipt Requested# 7010 2780 0002 4354 3103 

Randy Huff, Secretary- Treasurer 
Whitmore Manufacturing Company 
930 Whitmore Drive 
Rockwall, TX 75087 

RE: In the Matter of Whitmore Manufacturing Company 
Docket No. EPCRA-06-2013-0502 

Dear Mr. Huff: 

Enclosed is the fully executed Complaint and Consent Agreement and Final Order 
(CAFO) that has been filed with the Regional hearing Clerk. You have (30) days from the effective 
date of the CAFO to pay the $9,175 civil penalty to EPA as set forth in section IV beginning on 
page 6 of the CAPO. The effective date is the date the CAFO is filed with the Regional Hearing 
Clerk. 

In the event you should have any further questions or concerns regarding this matter please 
contact Stan Lancaster at 214.665.8034. Your cooperation in expediting the settlement of this case 
is most appreciated. 

Enclosure (1) 

Sincerely yours, 

ftu~ 
/ Carl E. Edlund, P.E. 
r--Director 

Multimedia Planning and 
Permitting Division 



FiLeD 
UNITED STATES l0/21/ov 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCVo. , :?O P,Y :?: D 
REGION 6 · t~)'/ !,t-' .\ . '0 

IN THE MATTER OF: 

WHITMORE MANm'ACTUIUNG 
COMPANY 

ROCKWALL, TF:XAS 

RF:SPONDF:NT 

,, Rc- ,'•./;,·. 
DALLAS, TEXAS '- Gfori V/-'Lt,:.';.: 

§ 
§ 
§ 
§ DOCKET NO. EPCRA-06-2013-0502 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 

CONSENT AGREF:MENT AND FINAL ORDER 

The Director, Multimedia Planning and Permitting Division, United States 

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Region 6 (Complainant), and Whitmore 

Manufacturing: Company (Respondent) in the above-referenced proceeding, hereby agree to 

resolve this matter through the issuance of this Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAPO). 

I. PRF:LIMINARY STA TEMF:NT 

I. This proceeding for the assessment of civil penalties pursuant to Section 325(c) of the 

Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA), 42 U.S.C. § ll045(c), is 

simultaneously commenced and concluded by the issuance of this CAFO against the Respondent 

pursuant to 40 C.f.R. §§ 22.13(b) and 22.18(b )(2) and (3). 

2. for the pu11mses of this proceeding, the Respondent admits the jurisdictional 

allegations herein; however, the Respondent neither admits nor denies the specific factual 

allegations conlained in this CAFO. 



In the matter of Whitmore Manufacturing Company Docket No. EPCRA 06-2013-0502 

3. The Respondent explicitly waives any right to contest the allegations and its right to 

appeal the proposed Final Order set forth therein, and waives all defenses which have been raised 

or could have been raised to the claims set forth in the CAFO. 

4. Compliance with all the terms and conditions of this CAFO shall resolve only those 

violations which are set forth herein. 

5. The Respondent consents to the issuance of this CAFO, to the assessment and 

payment of the stated civil penalty in the amount and by the method set fmih in this CAFO. 

6. The Respondent represents that it is duly authoriLed to execute this CAFO and that the 

party signing this CAFO on behalf of the Respondent is duly authorized to bind the Respondent 

to the terms and conditions of this CAFO. 

7. The Respondent agrees that the provisions of this CAFO shall be binding on its 

officers, directors, employees, agents, servants, authorized representatives, successors, and 

asstgns. 

8. The Respondent hereby certifies that as of the date of the execution of this CAFO, 

Whitmore Manufacturing Company has corrected the violation(s) alleged in this CAFO and is 

now, to the best of its knowledge, in compliance with all applicable requirements of Section 313 

ofEPCRA, 42\J.S.C. § 11023, and 40 C.F.R. Part 372. 

II. STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND 

9. Section 313 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. s 11023, and 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.22 and 372.30 

require the owner or operator of a facility that: (a) has ten or more full~time employees; (b) that 

is an establishment with a primary Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) major group or 

2 



In the matter of Whitmore Manufacturing Company Docket No. EPCR/\ 06-2013-0502 

industry code listed in 40 C.F.R. § 372.23(a), or a primary North American Industry 

Classification System (NAICS) subscctor or industry code listed in 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.23(b) or 

(c); and (c) "manufactured, processed, or otherwise used" a toxic chemical listed under 

Subsection 313(c) ofEPCRA and 40 C.F.R. § 372.65, in excess of the threshold quantity 

established under Subsection 313(1) or EPCRA, 42 U.S. C. § 11023(1), and 

40 C.P.R. §§ 372.25, 372.27, or 372.28 during the calendar year, to complete and submit a toxic 

chemical release inventmy Form R to the Administrator of EPA and to the State in which the 

subject facility is located by July 1, for the preceding calendar year, for each toxic chemical 

known by the ov.r:r1er or operator to be "manufactured,yrocessed, or otherwise used" in quantities 

exceeding the established threshold quantity during that preceding calendar year. 

10. According to Section 313(1) ofEPC:RA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(1), and 

40 C.f.R. § 3 72.25, the threshold amount for reporting under Section 313(b) of EPCRA, 

42 U.S.C. § 11 023(b), and 40 C:.f.R. § 372.30, is 25,000 pounds for any toxic chemical 

"manufactured or processed," and 10,000 pounds for any toxic chemical "otherwise used" for the 

applicable calendar year. Alternative reporting thresholds are set forth in 

40 C:.F.R. §§ 372.27 and 372.28. 

III, FINDINGS OF FACT ANll CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

A. I'RELIMINARY ALLEGATIONS 

11. The Respondent is a corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Texas, 

and authorized to do business in the State of Texas. 
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12. The Respondent is a "person" as ddined by Section 329(7) ofRPCRA, 

42 U.S C.§ 11049(7). 

13. The Respondent owns and operates the business at 930 Whitmore Drive, Rockwall, 
TX, 75087. 

14. Whitmore Manufacturing Company, identified in Paragraph 13, is a "facility", as that 

term is defined by Section 329(4) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(4), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.3. 

15. The Respondent's tJ.cility has ten ( 1 0) or more "full-time employees" that tem1 is 

defined by 40 C.P.R. § 372.3. 

16. The Respondent's facility is in NAICS subscctor or industry code 324141, petroleum 

lubricating oil and grease manufacturing. 

17. Antimony compounds and zinc compounds are "toxic chemicals" within the meaning 

of 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.3 and 372.65. 

18. During calendar years 2007, the toxic chemical in paragraph 17 was "manufactured, 

processed, or otherwise used" as those terms are defined by 40 C.F.R. § 372.3, at the 

Respondent's facility. 

19. On September 5, 2012, an inspection was conducted by a duly authorized 

representative of EPA, Region 6, on the facility located at 930 Whitmore Drive, Rockwall, TX, 

75087. 
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B. VIOLATIONS 

Count 1 -Failure to timely File Form R for Zinc Compounds for 
Calendar Y car 2007 

20. During calendar year 2007, the Respondent "processed'' tbe "toxic chemical'· zinc 

compounds at the Respondent's facility, in excess of the applicable threshold quantities. 

21. The Respondent failed to file a Form R with EPA and the State of Texas for the 

"toxic chemical" listed in paragraph 17 by July 1, 2008, for the 2007 calendar year. 

22. Therefore, the Respondent violated Section 3l3(a) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § ll 023(a), 

and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30 by failing to submit complete and accurate Form R for zinc compounds 

for calendar year 2007, to EPA and to the State of Texas by July 1, 2008. 

Count 2 -Failure to timely File Form R for Antimony Compounds for 
Calendar Y car 2007 

23. During calendar year 2007, the Respondent "processed" the "toxic chemical" 

antimony compounds at the Respondent's facility, in excess of the applicable threshold 

quantities. 

24. The Respondent failed to file a Form R with EPA and the State of Texas for the 

"toxic chemical" listed in paragraph 17 by July I, 2008, for the 2007 calendar year. 

25. Therefore, the Respondent violated Section 313(a) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § ll023(a), 

and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30 by failing to submit complete and accurate Form R for antimony 

compounds fOr calendar year 2007, to EPA and to the State of Texas by July I, 2008. 
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IV. TERMS OF SETTLEMENT 

A. CIVIL PENALTY 

26. Upon consideration ofthe entire record herein, including the Findings of Fact and 

Conclusions of Law, which are hereby adopted and made a part hereof: and upon consideration 

of the nature, circumstances, extent and gravity of the alleged violations, and with respect to the 

Respondent, ability to pay, history of prior EPCRA Section 313 violations, the degree of 

culpability, economic benefit or savings (if any) resulting from the violations, and other factors 

ao:; justice may require, it is ORDERED that Respondent be assessed a civil penalty of NINE 

THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED SEVENY-FIVE DOLLARS AND NO CENTS ($9,175.00). 

27. This document is a "Final Order" as that term is defined in the "Enforcement 

Response Policy for Section 313 of the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to~ Know Act 

(1986) and Section 6607 of the Pollution Prevention Act (1990)," dated August I 0, 1992; 

Amended, April 21, 2001; for the purpose of demonstrating a history of"prior such violations". 

B. RETENTION OF ENFORCEMENT RIGHTS 

28. The EPA does not waive any rights or remedies available to EPA for any other 

violations by the Respondent of federal or State laws, regulations, or permitting conditions. 

29. Nothing in this CAFO shall relieve the Respondent of the duty to comply with all 

applicable provisions of Section 313 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023, and 40 C.F.R. Part 372. 

30. Except as specifically provided in this CAFO, nothing herein shall limit the power 

and authority of EPA or the United States to take, direct, or order all actions to protect public 

health, welfare, or.tbe environment, or prevent, abate or minimize an actual or threatened release 
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In the matter of Whitmore Manufacturing Company Docket No_ EPCR_A 06-2013-0502 

THE UNDERSIGNED PARTIES CONSENT TO THE ENTRY OF THIS CONSENT 
AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER: 

FOR THE RESPONDENT: 

Date: I I ~ " ::/1-c 

FOR THE COMPLAINANT: 

Date: ul ;s- /rL I , 

R?~it:tr i'reas;;,~.;, ~ ~ ~ 
Whi1morc Manufacturing Company 
930 Whitmore Drive 
Rockwall, TX 750S7 

~~I!J$;~-
/ CarlE Edlund, P.E. 

Y'-Director 
Multimedia Planning and 

Permitting Division 
L' .S. EPA Region 6 
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V. FINAL ORDER 

Pursuant to Section 325(e) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(c), and the Consolidated Rules 

of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties, 40 C.F.R. Part 22, the 

foregoing Consent Agreement is hereby ratified. This Pinal Order shall not in any case affect the 

right of EPA or the United States to pursue appropriate injunctive or other equitable relief or 

criminal sanctions for any violations of law. This Final Order shall resolve only those causes of 

action alleged in the Consent Agreement. Nothing in this Final Order shall be construed to 

waive, extinguish or otherwise affect Respondent's (or its officers, agents, servants, employees, 

successors, or assigns) obligation to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes 

and regulations, including the regulations that were the subject of this action. The Respondent is 

ordered to comply with the terms of settlement and the civil penalty payment instructions as set 

forth in the Consent Agreement. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.31 (b), this Final Order shall 

become effective upon filing with the Regional Hearing Clerk. 

Dated 1\- \[\ \'l 

Regional Judicial Officer 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on th~ji. day oyj;f;rr._,y~---·--' 2012, the original and one 

copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) was hand delivered to the 

Regional Hearing Clerk, U.S. EPA- Region 6, 1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200, Dallas, Texas 

75202-2733, and a true and correct copy of the CAFO was delivered to the following 

individual(s) by the method indicated below: 

CERTIFIED MAIL- RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED# 7010 2780 0002 4354 3103 

Randy Huff, Secretary--Treasurer 
Whitmore Manufacturing Company 
930 Whitmore Drive 
Rockwall, TX 75087 

{ 

'/-=-~-~
aster 

A 313 Enforcement 
J.S. EPA Region 6 

Dallas, TX 75202 
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